ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVM TTEE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 6, 2017
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Senat or
Senat or
Senat or
Senat or
Senat or

Shel | ey Hughes, Chair
Gary Stevens

Cathy G esse

John Coghi |

Tom Begi ch

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Representative Harriet Drunmond, Chair
Representative Justin Parish, Vice Chair
Representati ve Zach Fansl er
Representative |Ivy Spohnhol z
Representati ve Jennifer Johnston
Representative David Tal erico

MEMBERS ABSENT

SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Al menbers present

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Representati ve Chuck Kopp
Representati ve Lora Reinbold (Alternate)
Representative Geran Tarr (Alternate)

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  COVWWONWEALTH NORTH OPERATI NG BUDGET REPORT - K-12

FUNDI NG

- HEARD

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -1-

March 6, 2017



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

MARK FOSTER, Consult ant

Commonweal th North (CWN)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on a Fiscal Review of
Al aska K-12 | nvestnents.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:02:47 AM

CHAI R SHELLEY HUGHES called the joint neeting of the Senate and
House Education Standing Commttees to order at 8:02 a.m
Present at the call to order were Senators G essel, Begich,
Coghill, Stevens, and Chair Hughes and Representatives Parish,
Fansl er, Johnston, Spohnhol z, Tal erico, and Chair Drumond.

PRESENTATI ON: . COVMWONWEALTH NORTH OPERATI NG BUDGET REPORT - K-12
FUNDI NG

8:03:41 AM

CHAI R HUGHES announced that the only order of business would be
a presentation by Comonwealth North Operating (CW on the
operating budget report for K-12. She related that CAs has a
long conmmtnent to support sound fiscal policies in Al aska.
Today's report is their latest effort toward that conmtnent.
She hoped it would be a valuable tool for the legislature to
consider as it looks for ways to deal with the fiscal gap and
t he educati on system

8:04:51 AM

MARK FOSTER, Consultant, Conmonwealth North (CWN), presented
information on a Fiscal Review of Alaska K-12 Investnents. He
shared his professional background as the fornmer Chief Financial
Oficer of the Anchorage School District and the Executive
Director of the Ofice of Budget and Managenent. He continues to
provi de consulting services, none of which are related to K-12
finances. He said that he would present CW s reconmendations
regardi ng school consolidations.

He highlighted two recommendations the CW fiscal study group
made related to K-12:

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 2- March 6, 2017



Education funding needs to refocus on direct
instruction that vyields neasureable inprovenents in
student achievenent. State K-12 funding should be
reduced by 1 to 3 percent per year for four years,
during which funding would have to be reallocated from
adm ni strative/ operations, ot her t han di rect
i nstruction, to mai ntai n fundi ng for di rect
i nstruction.

Prior to making investnents in UA teacher training
prograns, teacher training prograns both inside and
outside Al aska should be evaluated to identify those
that have produced high quality teachers who have
generated hi gh student achi evenent results.

8:08: 00 AM
CHAI R HUGHES asked about the findings of the report dealing with
overal | spending versus spending in the classroom

MR. FOSTER noted that discussion would be covered shortly.

He continued with a question CAN asked about how to address the
cost and the performance of the fornmula progranms. He stressed
|l ooking at the quality of the programs, not whether their
fundi ng shoul d be increased or decreased.

He turned to two elenents critical to wunderstanding CW s
recommendati ons, descriptions of the fiscal gap as it relates to
Al aska's future, and consideration of the pension funding
chal | enges.

8:09: 53 AM

MR. FOSTER turned to graphs from Al aska's Future website on the
i npact of five permanent fund earnings bills and the status quo
on the deficit, dividends, and fund growh, with and wthout
including pension fund challenges. The analysis by Al aska's
Future suggests that even wth the wuse of permanent fund
earnings to help support both governnment and dividends, there
will still be a significant structural deficit. He said, wth
that remaining gap in mnd, the CA5 study group |ooked across
state functions and concluded that the essential state functions
will need to take nodest cuts, while other functions may take
deeper cuts. The rational for reducing K-12 funding by 1 percent
to 3 percent per year for four years came from |ooking at the
overal | budget outl ook.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 3- March 6, 2017



He addressed the fiscal outl ook including pension fund
obligations. He remnded the conmttee about the underfunded
liability related to the pension. He showed a graph that
i ncluded Mody's standard pension liability adjustrments of
approximately $250 mllion per year. He addressed the
conbi nation of the structural deficit and the off-book deficit.

8:12: 20 AM

CHAIR DRUMVOND referred to page 7 of the presentation and noted
that Mody's Standard Pension Liability Adjustnments have been
added.

8:12:48 AM

MR. FOSTER said that was correct.

8:12: 57 AM

CHAI R DRUMMVOND asked if it takes into consideration the annual
paynents the state is making of about $250 million in pension

obl i gati ons.

MR. FOSTER opined that there is additional pension liability
that is not part of the pay down that is commonly cal cul ated by
Moody's when trying to assess the capacity of the state. It is
based on actuarial estimates and not on the risk-adjusted
estimates that third parties use.

CHAIR DRUVMMOND asked if he is suggesting the state provide an
addi tional $250 mllion.

MR FOSTER clarified that it 1is another $250 nillion of
l[tability and the question is how to account for it. To estimate
the overall liability going forward, he would add it to the
consi deration when thinking about the structural benefit.

8:14:12 AM

SENATOR BEG CH asked about CWN s philosophy regarding the 1
percent to 3 percent cut based on whether to use certain
revenues in lieu of other revenues.

MR. FOSTER expl ained that there was a wide variety of discussion
within CW s fiscal study group. The conbination of interests
led to the conprom se nunber of 1 to 3 percent.

SENATOR BEG@ CH stated it is a conprom se nunber based on a
phi | osophi cal di scussion, not an evi dence-based nunber.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -4- March 6, 2017



MR. FOSTER disagreed. He said there was benchnmark evidence on
both sides of the issue.

8:15: 38 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked for an explanation between actuari al
versus risk adjustnent.

8:16: 04 AM

MR. FOSTER drew attention to Mody's downgrade of state debt
found in an eight-page report from July 2016 where experts nmade
adjustnments to the actuarial analysis to take into account what
they believe is a fair representation of liability including
future cash flow requirenents. That nunber is significantly
different than the actuarial analysis. He offered to wite a
sumary of that information

SENATOR STEVENS agreed it would be good to have it in witing.

MR. FOSTER provided an exanple of the actuarial analysis using
an 8 percent return assunption; Mody believes in a |ower return
nunber .

CHAI R HUGHES requested a short brief on the topic.

8:17: 30 AM

MR. FOSTER turned to a report from July 2015 by Augenbli ck,
Pal ai ch and Associates (APA) consulting group entitled, "Review
of Al aska's School Funding Program"™ One of their findings was
the regression analysis examning the relationship between
instructional expenditures and district proficiency |evels,
which showed a positive relationship between spending and
per f or mance in bot h r eadi ng and mat h. Cont r ast ed to
i nstructional expenditure per pupil, the analysis indicated that
there is no significant relationship between total district
expenditure per pupil and district proficiency |levels. There is
a positive response on student performance from instructional
investnment, but a negative response by investnments other than
instruction. This suggests a need to examine the system of
funding to ensure a return, not | osing ground.

8:19: 32 AM
REPRESENTATI VE PARISH asked if it is a correlative or causal
rel ati onship.

MR. FOSTER understood that the APA Study was correl ative.

CHAI R DRUMMOND r equested a copy of the study.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 5- March 6, 2017



8:21: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH asked if the study was controlled for any
ot her factors such as location, rural or urban, or spending on
connectivity.

MR. FOSTER said APA did account for a few denographic factors.

8.21.44 AM

MR. FOSTER related that the Anchorage School District hired
consultants to address the question where to focus financial
investnment in education. They did a study on the nunber of
teachers versus support staff and found that high performng
districts were successful due to having nore teachers than
support staff. They found ways to reduce admnistrative and
support costs in order to enploy nore teachers. They also found
that many rural districts have nore support staff than teachers.
It was suggested that rural districts mght have challenges with
teacher recruitnent, so they use support staff to backfill enpty
positions. The challenge was that this did not yield neasurable
performance benefits in proficiency or grow h.

8:24:26 AM

SENATOR BEG CH inquired if rural districts are backfilling
because they can't get teachers and the recommendati on from CWN
is to reduce the anpunt of noney available to districts, how
that woul d neasurably inprove educational outcones. He asked if
the conparison of Alaska wth Womng includes rural or
successful districts.

MR. FOSTER said both are conpared

SENATOR BEG CH restated his first question. He questioned the
| evel and depth of the anal ysis.

MR. FOSTER replied that rural districts my have invested in
things other than direct instruction. The challenge is to supply
quality instruction and inprove conpensation packages for
t eachers. He noted the sanme phenonenon occurs in urban
districts; instead of investing in teachers, they invest in
teacher assistants and that doesn't yield benefits. It appears
to be cost effective, but it is not educationally effective.
There is a state fiscal challenge, so it nmkes sense to reduce
overall levels of financial support, but invest available
resources in trained teachers.

8:27:13 AM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 6- March 6, 2017



SENATOR BEG CH asked again how a one-to-three percent reduction
i s possible when teachers cannot be recruited to urban areas. He
request ed evidence for a causal correlation.

MR. FOSTER replied there is no direct evidence that reducing the
budget will help education. He pointed out that a |ot of noney
has been spent w thout getting results and there is a need to
construct systens to support neasurenents of success and
encourage investnent in areas that are getting return.

8:28:52 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON asked if he is suggesting that by
| owering the budget, it allows policynmakers to create a vision

that provides great teachers to all of Alaska students, wth
consideration of virtual education and support staff in the
cl assroons to assist great virtual teachers.

MR. FOSTER said that is one npdel

8:29:45 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ said she doesn't disagree with the idea
that having nore teachers wll vyield better outcones, but is

confused about the strategy. Requiring cuts to the budget to
achieve an outcone that does not have a clear connection to
budget cuts is confusing. She asked if they explored any other
proposal s, such as requiring a larger percentage of resources
being allocated to the classroomby district.

8:30:41 AM

MR. FOSTER clarified that their focus was on getting nore
resources for teachers. The context was that the overall budget
gap appeared to be significant enough that even essential
services probably nerited reductions. That is in part due to
benchmar ki ng those essential services against other states and
concluding that even after adjusting for cost, the state is
paying at |east as nuch as other states for education and not
getting a return on that investnent.

8:31:28 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ did not disagree with that point, but
asked how cutting the budget, overall, is supposed to inspire

districts to reall ocate resources to the classroom

MR. FOSTER explained that CW is not arguing that the cuts
realign, but are suggesting that the legislature needs to
consider shifting nonies toward direct classroom instruction by
qual ity teachers as a nove toward best practices.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -7- March 6, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ understood he is not proposing that
budget cuts woul d produce this outconme. Instead, the legislature
should focus on re-allocating resources from admnistration and
support into the classroom

MR. FOSTER sai d yes.

CHAI R HUGHES commented that not reducing teachers, but reducing
adm nistration is the bottom line. Overall spending per pupil
does not have great results, but spending for class instruction
does inpact results.

8:33:26 AM
REPRESENTATI VE PARISH commented that the evidence does not
suggest results, it suggests correl ation.

8: 33: 55 AM

MR. FOSTER continued with a graph on the support staff ratio per
100 students by school district. The evidence-based resource
nodel found that six support staff per 100 students was
justified. Only two districts had that suggested ratio, M.
Edgecunbe and Mat - Su.

8:35:35 AM
CHAI R HUGHES asked whet her support staff includes teacher aides
and instructional aides in the classroom

MR. FOSTER sai d yes.

He continued with a graph conparing on Al aska's K-12 investnent
and performance levels with other states in FY2014-FY2015. It
showed very little correlation on spending and student
performance at the state level. Recently, Al aska has mgrated
from the "mddle" of spending and performance toward high
spendi ng/ | ow performance quadrant.

He showed a graph of proficiency versus percent of school age
children in poverty by state in January 2017. St udent
performance and percentage of school age children in poverty
continues to be inversely correlated at the state |evel. Al aska
made nodest inprovenents in student performance, while other
states have nade nore progress in that areas.

8:38: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PARISH referred to the extrenmely high R-squared
val ues. He thought anything that can be done to reduce child

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 8- March 6, 2017



poverty would be a good investnent. He asked if M. Foster
agr eed.

MR. FOSTER sai d yes.

8:39:11 AM

CHAI R DRUMMOND said the nunber of students in poverty in Al aska
has increased from roughly 10 percent to 13.5 percent, yet
student proficiency has increased slightly during that tine.

MR FOSTER said that was correct.

CHAI R DRUVMOND concl uded that Al aska has taken sone steps toward
reduci ng the inpacts of chil dhood poverty.

MR. FOSTER stated that the evidence suggests that education
results have inproved despite chil dhood poverty.

CHAl R DRUMMOND asked what has been done that has contributed to
t hat i nprovenent.

MR. FOSTER sai d he has not done that analysis.

8:40: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON asked if student poverty is neasured by
the free lunch program She asked when Anchorage opened the
program to all students. She wondered if the poverty rate
decreased when all students were able to take free | unch.

MR. FOSTER reported that CW s poverty nunbers were independent
from the free lunch data. The school district did nove to a
school -wi de assessnent for student free lunch eligibility.

8.42:23 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON asked how CWN neasured the poverty rate

MR. FOSTER expl ai ned that they used poverty estimtes devel oped
by the Bureau of Labor and cross-checked those against the
census.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON said the graph shows that Anchorage
School District is still below the norm

MR. FOSTER agreed. He said Alaska has only nmade nodest

i nprovenents in student performance and other states have nade
significant inprovenments. Mst everyone else is doing better

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -9- March 6, 2017



than Al aska is, so Alaska needs to figure out how to get back on
track and catch up.

8:43:43 AM
CHAIR DRUVMOND recognized the presence of Representati ve
Fansl er.

8:.44:. 24 AM

MR. FOSTER turned to another graph that depicts K-12 investnent
| evel s and performance conpared to other states after adjusting
for poverty. Several states nade significant progress in student
performance with noderate increases in K-12 investnent |evels.
Massachusetts student perfornmance continues to outpace the rest
of the states. Alaska and Hawaii are outliers - falling well
bel ow expected performance for their K-12 investnent and child
poverty levels. He noted the inpact of the nationw de fiscal
downturn. He explained that Alaska and Hawaii have nodest
increases in poverty despite spending a lot of resources; other
states show increased performance. Alaska nust figure out where
to invest noney to get a return.

8:49:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH pointed out that this trend |looks like it
is just barely significant. He asked how nuch per pupil spending
is attributable to high health care costs.

8:49: 50 AM

MR. FOSTER thought it was a significant anount and nuch higher
than in other states. Health care costs are nore than what you
m ght expect in Al aska, approximately $3,000 per student.

8:50: 29 AM

SENATOR BEG CH used an analogy of energy inefficiency in a
house. It seens as though CWN suggests unplugging the
electricity instead of determining the reasons for the

i nefficiency and changing those factors. He inquired how CWN can
suggest budget cuts as a solution to inefficiency, instead of
using and investing resources to do a better job of determning
the cause of it. He noted APA's study said the foundation
formula was doing well except how it served poverty, special
education kids, and Alaska Native kids in rural Alaska. He
questioned the relevance of the conparison between Massachusetts
and Alaska given the vast differences in size and rural
chal | enges.

8:52:17 AM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 10- March 6, 2017



MR. FOSTER responded that the conparison was used due to high
performance and poverty challenges in both states. Anchorage and
Boston have simlarities, such as heavy allocations of resources
for support for teachers and high health <care costs. He
explained their recommendation for cuts as a way to inprove
performance being due to the whole challenging fiscal situation
and the need to benchmark spending for staffing to understand
what the appropriate levels are that will result in success. CWN
is suggesting focussing on direct classroom instruction and
t eacher preparation.

8:54:41 AM

MR. FOSTER |listed CAW s recommendations and strategies to shift
resources toward inproved performance at the district |evel and
state level inplenmentation options and considerations. He spoke
of a level of fatigue districts go through during budget cycles
and he suggested seeking benchmarks of districts finding success
i nstead of | ooking at previous year benchmarks.

8:.56:21 AM

MR. FOSTER revi ewed school facility consolidation incentives. He
did not find evidence that the fornmula, per se, drove small
schools. The size of schools is driven by the neighborhood and
t he geography and the distance for transportation. He did not
see that the school size factor in the top five school districts
drove smal |l school s.

He agreed that school size is a disincentive to schoo
consolidation. He showed a graph of Average Daily Menbership
(ADM by schools. He did a conparison of two schools using the
foundation formula and ADM and concluded that school
consolidation saves noney. From a district perspective, there
are efficiencies in admnistrative costs from consolidation,
however, there are negatives in ternms of finances and politics.

9: 00: 49 AM

CHAIR DRUMMOND said she is trying to figure out how two smal
rural villages, each with 200 students, that are 50 to 60 mles
apart can benefit from consolidation. She thought it mght work
in a large district. She recalled presentations about
consolidation of services anong districts that have resulted in
savings. She did not see consolidation working in rura
districts.

9:01: 44 AM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -11- March 6, 2017



VR. FOSTER thought it was a consideration for suburban
districts. He cautioned about spare capacity in the Anchorage
School district associated with the mlitary base (JBER)

9:02: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH was rem nded of a Russian story when there
were plagues and nmany doctors, so they executed doctors as the
solution - a fundanental problem of correlation and causation

He shared his experience as support staff and naintained that
cutting support staff is the wong solution considering Al aska's
high rates of childhood sexual abuse and adverse chil dhood
experiences. He stressed that cutting support to children is
wong. He wondered if the study considered adverse chil dhood
experiences (ACEs).

MR. FOSTER related that he has studied that issue at the
Anchor age- muni ci pal level, but not at the state |evel. He agreed
that there are high rates of ACEs and that wurban districts
nati onwi de have significant challenges. He offered that the
investnments focused in this area have not been very effective.

9: 06: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON referred to the graph conparing student
performance and investnent levels in states, after adjusting for
poverty. She asked which rural western states have nmade greater
i nprovenents in student performance.

9:07:15 AM
MR. FOSTER thought M nnesota was a better exanple than Montana
due to its diverse popul ation.

REPRESENTATI VE  JOHNSTON asked if any states wth [large
reservations have shown marked i nprovenent.

9:07: 58 AM
MR FOSTER said he did not |ook at that detail.

9:08: 17 AM

MR. FOSTER said that concludes his presentation and he thanked
the committee for hearing about the CW Fiscal Study. He
suggested that Al aska focus investnents going forward.

9: 08: 57 AM

CHAIR HUGHES said it was depressing to |look at those graphs. She
mai ntained that Alaska needs to inprove. She asked what
recommendat i ons Al aska shoul d consider to help change what we're
seei ng.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -12- March 6, 2017



9:09: 54 AM

MR. FOSTER responded that the study group did not conme to
consensus on the initiatives. He suggested to reduce
adm ni strative overhead and focus resources on the classroom It
can be done through intent |anguage and fiscal adjustnents. He
opined that, long term the formula warrants a fresh look in
order to focus on teachers; attracting, retaining, and training
t he teacher pool.

9:11: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH appreciated the suggestion to inprove
benefits for teachers and address child poverty, the strongest
predictor of childhood outcones. He asked if the legislature
should focus on reducing childhood poverty and mnmitigating its
effects.

9:12: 25 AM

MR. FOSTER said yes. Sone efforts to inprove poverty are
successful, and sone are not. He suggested to be mndful of
where to make investnents.

9:12: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH asked for a report on the correlation
between high health costs and childhood traumas and | ower
performance, and the need for nore support staff.

9:13:29 AM

CHAIR DRUMMOND recalled that |ast year the legislature renoved
the 70/30 split between required expenditures in the classroom
and all other school district expenditures due to rural schools
having difficulty paying heating bills. She asked whether the
CWN study took unavoi dable operational costs into consideration
when recomrendi ng reduci ng adm ni strative expenditures.

9:14:18 AM

MR. FOSTER replied they did look at the <cost of heating,
el ectricity, housing, etc. in 2008. It appears that the cost of
housing in Anchorage has risen faster than in rural areas. He
said they need to redo data and list Mat-Su as the nost
expensive place to live. They didn't have sufficient data to
include it in the report.

9:15:54 AM

CHAI R DRUVMOND said she is talking about the cost of running a
school building in rural Al aska and housing teachers in rura

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 13- March 6, 2017



districts. Uban housing costs have no relevance to this
guestion. She restated her question.

MR. FOSTER said they did not |ook at the 70/30 split.

9:16: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ referred to M. Parish's earlier
guestion and asked what the CW study considered as classroom
spending and if it was teachers only.

MR. FOSTER replied teachers; highly qualified professionals with
direct classroomtinme with students for nost of their day.

REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ noted there are a lot of support staff
in the classroom such as paraprofessionals. She said her
daughter is an appreciated teacher assistant in a kindergarten
cl ass. She provided anot her exanple of special education classes
where teachers have nuch-needed support staff.

MR. FOSTER referenced a PICA Report done in Anchorage that
reviewed the evidence whether an investnent in support staff
made a difference and found that it had mniml effect on
yielding better test results. There is nmerit in |looking at that
resource and investing in nore teachers, not support staff,
especially in the | ower grades.

9:20: 24 AM
SENATOR BEA CH asked if energy and nmaintenance costs are
i ncluded in non-instructional data in the study.

MR. FOSTER said he did not know if APA included those costs. He
said he has only |ooked at staffing and not at energy and
mai nt enance costs.

SENATOR G ESSEL thanked M. Foster for his work on the CW
Fiscal Study Goup. She alluded to child poverty and adverse
chi | dhood events and maintained that schools have becone soci al
service providing entities. She thought there were creative
solutions to that problem such as schools contracting wth
private entities to provide nental health counseling. She
appreci ated the enphasis of poverty's effect on the outcones of
education. In Mat-Su one of the predictors of success in schools
is whether there is a job in the hone.

9: 23: 44 AM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -14- March 6, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHCOLZ questioned the re-allocation of support
staff to lower grades. She asked how that would affect the
student/teacher rati os.

9:24: 33 AM

MR. FOSTER said the conparison of teacher salary and benefits
versus support staff salary benefits would equal about 1.6
support staff to one teacher.

9:25: 06 AM

SENATOR BEG CH referenced energy costs per district and read
some of those costs. He pointed out that many snmaller districts
have energy costs that exceed nunbers in the larger districts.
Finding out if those costs are included would make a big
difference in the outcones of the study.

9:26:17 AM
CHAI R HUGHES asked M. Foster to find that information.

MR. FOSTER said he would try.

9: 26: 42 AM
REPRESENTATI VE FANSLER requested information about the cost of
br oadband/i nternet access to districts.

9:27:29 AM

CHAIR HUGHES thanked M. Foster. She referred to Al aska's
academ c achievenent results and said it is hard to accept that
Alaska is not doing a great job. Factors such as poverty, the
home environnent, and parents having a job can affect a child's
educati onal chances of success. The Education Commttees can't
change what is going on in hones, however, they can create
policy to ensure access to great teachers, which can overcone
sone of the poverty inplications. She opined that the commttee
can nmake sure students have access to great teachers and better
achi evement. She encouraged everyone to think about opening
access to better teachers and be willing to shake things up.
Alaska is unique, but it is not alone with these challenges.
O her states have had better academ c inprovenent. She concl uded
that she believes that every student matters and can succeed if
given the opportunity. The commttees nust work together for
better student achievenent.

9:31:40 AM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair Hughes adjourned the Joint Education Standing Commttees
at 9:31 a.m

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -15- March 6, 2017



